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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF SAVITA POLYMERS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of Savita Polymers Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet ag at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and
the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a Summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
financial statements”).

the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, and its profit and total comprehensive income, its cash flows and changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements In accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under thoge
standards are further deseribed in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAD) together with
the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAY's Code of Ethics,
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board Report
including Annexures to Board Report and other Shareholder Information but does not include
the financial staternents and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude thata material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and




gokhale & sathe

(regd.)

chartered accountants

qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other maiters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Wealso provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3} of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014,

e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “ Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
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With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has not paid managerial remuneration to its director and
hence compliance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act is not required.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us:

ii.

i,

The Company does not have pending litigations which would impact on its
financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there are any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv,

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b} The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and

belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate




. gokhale & sathe
(regd.)

chartered accountants

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i} and (ii)
of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement

v.  As stated under statement of changes in equity to the financial statements

a) The final dividend proposed in the previous year, declared and paid by the
Company during the year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as
applicable.

b) The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed final dividend for the
year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting. The amount of dividend proposed is in accordance with
section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

For Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 103264W

e

Tejas Parikh

Partner

Membership No: 123215
UDIN: 22123215AKFLPB1667
Place: Mumbai

Date: 30 May 2022
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Savita Polymers Limited of even date)

In respect of the Company’s Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

a)

b)

d)

(A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of its Property Plant and Equipment and Capital
Work in Progress.

(B)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

The Company has a regular program of verification of Property, Plant and Equipment
50 to cover all the items in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
programme, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during
the year and were physically verified by the Management during the year. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification which were not properly dealt with in
the books of accounts in the current year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by
us and based on the examination of the conveyance deeds / registered sale deed
provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of self-constructed buildings and title
deeds of all immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is lessee
and lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company), disclosed in the
financial statements included under Property Plant and Equipment are held in the
name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable properties
of land that have been taken on lease and disclosed separately in Property Plant &
Equipment in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the
Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by
the management is appropriate; Discrepancies noticed were less than 10% for each
class of inventory.

The Company has working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, from banks on
the basis of security of current assets; the difference between the quarterly returns or
statements filed by the company with the banks and books of account of the Company
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are on account explainable items and not in material in nature. (Refer note no 38 to the
financial statements)

During the year, the Company has not made investments in or provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties and hence reporting
under clauses 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e), 3(iii)(f) are not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, provided guarantees and securities and hence
compliance with provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public during the year and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of
India and the provision of section 73 to 76 any other relevant provisions of the At and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regards to the deposits accepted
from the public are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the accounts and records maintained by the Company
pursuant to rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records
under Section 148 (1) of the Act, in respect of Company’s products to which the said rules
are made applicable and are of the opinion that, prima facie the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of records with a view to determine whether they are accurate.

In respect of statutory dues:

a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
exarmination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books
of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including the Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Goods and Service Tax, Sales Tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues applicable
have been regularly deposited during the year with appropriate authorities. There
were no undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-
end for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.

b) There were no arrears in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Sales Tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues as at 31 March 2022 on account of dispute
except as stated below. '
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Name of | Nature  of | Forum where | Period to which the | Amount

Statue dues Dispute is Pending | Amount Relates Z in
Lakhs

Maharashtra | Sales  Tax | Dy. Commissioner 2014-15 2.69

Value CS5T of Sales Tax (E-640)

Added Tax LTU-4, Mumbai

Act, 2002

Maharashtra | Sales  Tax | Dy. Commissioner 2015-16 1.89

Value CST of Sales Tax (E-640)

Added Tax LTU-4, Mumbai

Act, 2002

viii.  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

ix.

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

¢) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not raised money through term loans during the year and hence the
utilisation for the purpose for which they were obtained does not arise.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence
provision of clause 3(ix) (e) is not applicable.

f) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence
provision of clause 3(ix)(f) is not applicable.

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause
3{x){a) of the Order is not applicable.
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b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence

reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable,
xd.

a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

¢} As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

xiii.  Inour opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as
required by the applicable Indian Accounting standards.

xiv.  The Company is not required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and hence provisions of clause 3 (xiv) (a) and 3 (xiv) (b) are not
applicable.

xv. In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a) (b), (c) and (d) of
the Order is not applicable.

b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting
under clause 3(xvi}(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii.  The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.
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xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix.  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx. The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and there is no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer
to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance
with the provision of Sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting
under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

xxi.  The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements and hence
reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 103264W

\
e
Tejas Parikh
Partner
Membership No:
UDIN: 22123215AKFLPB1667

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 May 2022
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report to the Members of Savita Polymers Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Savita Polymers
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022, in conjunction with our audit of the Financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our auditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk thata
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.




gokhale & sathe
(regd.)
chartered accountants

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate intemnal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 103264W

A

Tejas Parikh

Partner

Membership No: 123215
UDIN: 22123215AKFLPB1667
Place: Mumbai

Date: 30 May 2022




Savita Polymers Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022

Mumbati
30™ May, 7022

Notes Asat As at Asat
Particulars 31.3.2022 3132021 §.4.2020
Tin tacs Tin lacs ¥ in lacs
ASSETS
i. Non-current Assets
a. Property. Plant and Equipments 3 943.84 886.35 §5v.13
b. Capital Work-in-Progress 3 238,46 33.30 12.72
. Other intangible Assets 4 0.48 .93 1.66
d. Finaneial Assets 3
(1) Envestments 5.1 1,889.25 1,866.65 1,249.8¢
(i1) Louns 33 " - .
{#ii) Others 34 20,38 20.05 248.94
. Other Non-current Assets 7 1.08 1.06 25,89
2. Current Assets
a. Inventoriies [ 508518 4,027.84 AT4762
b. Finaueial Assets 5
(i) Invesiments 3.4 937.62 - 25208
(ii) Trade Receivables 5.2 1,981.40 2008.49 1,958.00
(iti) Cash and cash equivalents 5.5 1,239.50 1,939.59 755.67
(iv) Bank balances other (han {ji) above 5.6 463.17 463.17 491.57
(v} Loans 53 9.7z G.63 28.01
(vi} Qthers 54 8.95 9.30 1547
<. Current Tax Assets (Net) 4 7.00 6.57 13.57
4. Other Current Assets 7 690.07 86017 1,032.29
e. Assets classified as held for sale - - -
Total Assets 13.506.00 12.162.13 10.472.5;
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
a. Equity Share Capital 8 61.06 61.00 61.00
b, Other Equity 9 10,440,806 9,509.58 8,2635.31
10,501.86 9,660.58 §,326.351
Liabilities
1. Nen-current Linbilities
a. Provisions it 88.90 92.39 78.46
b. Deferred Tax Liabitities (Net) 2 12696 160.72 39.45
¢, Other Non-cusrent Liabilitics 13 - - -
2. Current Liabilities
a. Financial Liabilities 1o
(i} Borrowings 10,1 - - 7.05
{ii} Trade Payables
Tetal owtstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterpsises 102 169,74 113.19 76,04
Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 10.2 2,372.57 191835 1,749.18
(it1) Ceber Financial Liabilities (other than those
specified in (¢) below) 10.3 56.43 5273 YA
b. Other Carrent Liabilities 13 130.30 1249 73.42
c. Provisions 11 20.27 21.70 4536
d. Current Tax Liabilities {(Nen 14 38.97 77.55 -
Total Liabikities 3,004.14 2,501.54 2,146,320
Fotal Equity and Liabilitics 13,506.00 12.162.12 1047251
Significant Accounting Policics 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial starements,
As per our report of the ecven date For and on behalf of the Board
For Gokhale & Sathe .
Chartered Accvwtants 4/ e
Firm Registeation Number: 103264W J
H\ﬁ P . Director Director
bor” PR T
Tejasd. Yarikh . " /
Partner ‘: N }; MM}VM\
Membership Na, 123215 Director Director
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Savita Polymers Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31% March, 2022

Notes Year ended Year ended
31.83.2022 31.3.2021
Tin lacy Tinlacs
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 15 12,431.71 10,221.96
Other Income 16 518.63 787.65
Total Income 12,950.34 11,009.61
EXPENDITURE
Cost of Materials Consumed 17 8.441.61 7,342.96
Purchase of Stock-in-trade 18 1,253.10 -
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress
and stock-in-trade 19 (363.88) (187.73)
Employee Benefits Expense 20 832.74 779.48
Finance Costs 21 54.95 46.52
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 22 109.28 871.71
Other Expenses 23 1,411.76 1,240.30
Total Expenditure 11.759.56 9.309.24
Profit for the year before exceptional items and fax 1,190.78 1,700.37
Add: Exceptional items - -
Profit for the year before tax 1,190.78 1,700.37
Tax Expenses
Current Tax 33 239.72 310,19
Deferred Tax 33 26.24 6127
Provision / (reversal) of tax estimates relating to prior years 33 8.50 (5.90)
‘Fotal Tax Expenses 274.46 365.56
Profit for the year from continuing operations 916.32 1,334.81
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or Joss:
1) Re-measurcment gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans 33 (18.76) 0.74)
ii} Income tax related to such items 33 4.72 0.19
Total Other Comprehensive Income (14.04) {0.55)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 902.28 1,334.26
Basic and Diluted earnings per share in ¥ (face vatue of T 10 each) 41 150,22 218.82
Significant Accounting Policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of the even date

For Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants
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Fir chi{:’ﬂtimt Number: 103264W

Tejas J7 Parikh

SCe)

Director

Partner
Membership No, 123215
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Mumbai
30™ May, 2022
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For and on behalf of the Board
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Savita Polymers Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31% March, 2022

Equity Share Capitnl Tin lacs
Balance as at April 1, 2020 61.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 61.00

Changes in equity share capital during the vear
Balance as at 31" March, 2022

G100

Other Equity

Tin lacs
Reserves and Surplus
Securities Capitai General Retained Other
Particutars . v . . . Comprehensive | Fotal Amount
Premium Redemption Reserve Earnings
Income
Reserve

Balance as at April 1, 2020 20.00 200.00 3,583.98 4,461,34 - §,265.31

Profit for the year - - - 1,334 .81 - 1,334.81

Other comprehensive income - - - - (0.55) {0.55)

Total comprehensive income for the year 2000 200.60 3,583.98 5,796.15 (0.55) 9.599.58

Transter from retained earnings / Transter to General Reserve - - 106,00 {100.00) - “

Batance at 31" March, 2621 20.00 200.00 3,683.98 5,696.15 {0.55) 9,599.58

Profit for the year - - - 916.32 - 916.32

Other comprehensive income “ - - - (14,04} (14,04)

Total comprehensive income for the year 20,00 200,00 3,68398 6,612.47 (14.39) 10,501.86

Proposed Dividerd for FY 2020-21 (61.00) “ (61.00)

Teansfer from retained earnings / Transter to General Reserve - - - - -

Balance at 31% March, 2022 20.00 200,00 3,683.98 6,551.47 (14.59) 10,440.86

The Board of Directors have recommended dividend @ 150 %, i.e., 5 per Equity Share (face vatue ¥ 10 each) aggregating to T 91.50 lacs for the year ended 31st

March, 2022,

Securities Premium : Premium collected on issue of securities is accumulated as part of securities premium. Utilisation of
such premium is restricted by the Companies Act, 2013.

Capital Redemption Reserve : This reserve is created ws 69 of the Companies Act, 2013 by transferring an smount equal to the
nomiaal value of shares bought back by the Company. The same is permitted to be used for issuing
fully paid bonus shares.

General Reserve - General reserve forms part of the retained earnings and is permitied {0 be distributed to shareholders
as dividend,

Retained Earnings : This represents profits remaining after all appropriations. This is free reserve and can be used for
distribution as dividead.

As per our report of the even date For and on behalf of the Board

for Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 103264W . B
/QE&W Director B § 17 T\ 1113

Tejasl, P;rikh 9 ££ Q 59 ) | gj {i’? {%g ™

Partner
BDirector Director

Membership No. 123215 5
(r0) {Strm’

o,

Mumbai
30" May, 2022
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Savita Polymers Limited

Cash Fiow Statement for the year ended 31" March, 2022

2021-2022 2020-202)

Tin lacs Rin lacs
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities -
Profit before tax from continuing operations 1,190.78 1,700.37
Adjustments for -
Depreciation on tangible assets 108.82 86.98
Amortisation on intangéble assets .46 0.72
(Profit)L.oss on sale of tangible fixed assets (net) {2.45) 1.97
(Profit)l.oss on sale of non-current investments(net} {104,29) (5528}
{Profit)/Loss on sale of current investments(net) (2.86) (23.14)
(Gait) / Diminution in the value of non-current investments (253.31) (566.21)
(Gain) / Diminution in the value of current investments (2.62) 1.97
Interest income (24,26} {29.15)
Dividend income (7.27) {4.01)
Unvrealised foriegn exchange (gain)/foss {2.39) 6.53
Bad Debts 13.48 0.18
Provision for Doubtfid Dxebis {1017 25,08
Operating profit before working capitat changes 903.91 1,146.02
Changes in working capital:
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables 512,85 198.43
Increase / {Decrease) in other current liabilities 9.08 27.04
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables 2411 (74.43)
(Increase) / Decrease in inveniories (1,057.34) (280,23
(Increase}/ Decrease in long-term loans and advances 8.76 24.72
(Increase} / Decrease in short-term loans and advances 170.03 190.57
Increase / (Decrease) in long term provisions {3.49) 13.93
Increase / (Decrease) in short term provisions (20.1%) (24.40)
Cash generated from operations 547.72 1,221,686
Encome tax paid (282.50) (219.55)

Net cash from Operating Activities 265,22 100211




Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31™ March, 2022 (contd.)

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:

Additions to tangible assels and CWiP

Sade of tangible assets

Purchase of current investments

Purchase of Noa-current investments

Sale of Non-current investments

Sale of current investments

Interest received

Dividend received

Net eash used in Investing Activities
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:

Repayment of short-term Borrowings

Dividend paid

Transfer to other banks balance (FDs)

Net cash used in Financing Activities
Net Ingrease f (Decreasc) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of the year
Cush and Cash Equivalents - End of the year (Refer Nate 5.5)
Net Cash and Cash Equivalents

Notes:

2) Previous year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to make them compasable with those of current year,

1} Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS - 7 specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2021-2022 20202021
Tin lacs Tin laes
{(342.18) (156.81)

315 0.5

(1,735.00) (936.74)

- (446.43)
334,99 451.15
802,86 1,210.00
24.61 3323
7.27 4.01
(904.30) 160.46

- (7.05)

(61.00} -

- 2841
(61.00) 21,36
(700.08) 1,183.93
1,939.58 755.67
1,239.50 1,939.59

700.08 (1,183.93)

As per aur report of the even date

For Gokhale & Sathe
Chartered Accountants Dircctor

Far and on behalf of the Board

Firm chiswon Number 103264W (“’ v 29
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Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

4 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Information Technology Soffware and Licences Sof{\vare &
License
L Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2020 39.64
Additions -
Deletions -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 39.64
II. Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment
Balance as at April 1, 2020 37.98
Amortisation for the year (Refer Note 23) 0.72
Accumulated depreciation on deletions -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 38.71
IIi. Net Carrying Amount as at March 31, 2021 0.93
IV Gross Carrying Amount
Balance as at 1™ April, 2021 39.64
Additions -
Deletions -
Balance as at 31¥ March, 2022 39.64
V  Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment
Balance as at 1* April, 2021 38.71
Additions 0.46
Deletions -
Balance as at 31™ March, 2022 39.16
V1 Net Carrying Amount as at 31st March, 2022 0.48
Carrying amount and remaining period of amortisation of Intangible Assets is as below:
Tin lacs
Oto5years 6to 10 years Total WDV

Information Technology Software and Licences 0.48 -

0.48




Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Face
Value
7
§  FINANCIAL ASSETS
§.1 Non-current Investments {fubly paid up) {(at FYEPL)
Quoted
Investrnents in Equity Instraments
Abbeit India Linsited 10
Asian Paints I
Bajaj Finance Limited 2
Geodesic Limited 2
HDFC Bank Ltd, 1
lisdian 08 Comporation Lid. 10
Kotak Malindra Bank Lid. 5
Nippen India ETF Bank Beas 1
Nippan tndia ETF Nifty $lees 1
Nippon India ETF Gold Bees 1
Piditite tndustries 1d. 1
Prism Johnson Ltd. 10
Prudential Sugar Corporation Lad. 10
Sarthak Securities Ltd. 10
SBI Cards and payment Ltd. 10
Torrent Pharmaceuticals Ltd 5
Unquoted
Investments in Equity Instruments
Retated Entities {Refer Note 31}
Savita Finance Corporation Limited 10
Savita Petro Additives Limited 10
Oihers
MMA CETP Co-eperative Society Limited 100
Investments in 16% Partly Convertidle Redeemable Cumulative
Preference Shares
Prudentiat Sugar Corporation Ltd, 10
Equity Oriented Mutual Funds
Axis Midcap Fuad - Regular - Growth 10
Aditya Birla Sun Life Digitaf India Fund - Growth - Regulas Plan 10
Edelweiss US Technology Equity Fund of Fund - Repular Plan Growth 10
Franklin India Focused Equity Fund - Growth 10
Franklin India Prima Fund - Growth 0
Franklin India Snsaller Companies Fund -~ Growth 10
Franklin lndia Low Duralion Fund - Growth 10
Franktin India Low Duration Fand - Growth Segrepated Portfolio 2 (10.90%
Yodafone Idea 028en2023 (PC 038ep2021) 0
Franklin India Technology Fund - Growth 10
Franklin India Feeder - Franklin US Opportunities Fund - Growth 10
HDFC Gold Fund - Regular Pian - Grawth He
HDFC Small Cap Fund » Regular Plan - Growth Plan i
Kotak Emerging Equity Fund - Growth (Regular Plan} 1)
Rotak Bynamic Bond Fund - Regular Pian - Growih 10
L&T Mideap Fund - Growth 10
Motilal Oswal Dynamic Fund - Regular Plan 10
Matilal Oswal Nasdaq 100 Fund of Fund - Regular Plan Girowth Option 10
Mirea Asset Focused Fund - Regular Pan - Growth 10
Mirea Asset Hybrid - Equigy Fund - Regalar Blan Growth Hi]
Mirae Asset Large Cap Fund - Regulur - Growth Pian 10
SB1 Focused Equity Fund - Regular Growth 0
Mirea Asses India Equity Fund - Growth 10

Aggregate amount of Quoted Invesiments

Market value of Quoted Investments

Aggregate amount of Unquoted [nvestments

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

As at
3132022
Quantity
Nos. / Units

85
278

510
20,000
1,845
49,550
800
8,000
43,760
1,151,000
320

500
4,900
100
1,224
230

2,118

4,900

1,26,03
1,035,448
3,77,200
1,20,130

17,11,500
48,434
1,52,169
306,12
3,00212
845,073
1,48,655
795171
7,438,335
75,373

As at
31.3.2021
Quantity
MNos. / Units

85

275
510
20,000
1,845
49,550
8O0
8,000
43,700
1,111,000
320
500
4,900
100
1224
230

80

2,118

4,900

1,26,103
1,05,448
3,77.200
2,38,260
2,604
12,966

18,776,028
48,434

1,52,169
3,06,712
70,234
3,09,212
1,909,698
23,037
8,45,073
1,48,655
791,171
7,48,335
59,660
75,373

Asat

1.4.2020
Quantity
Nos, f Units

85
275
510

20,000
[,843
49,550
800
8,600
43,700
320
500
4,900
100
1,224
230

80

2,118

4,900

1,26,103

2,38,260
2,604
18,966
2037610

20,37,610

70,234
309212
23,037
845,073
1,89,497
791,171
748,335
75,373
59,660

As at Asat Asat
31.3.2022 31.3.2021 1.4.2020
¥ in lacs T in lacs T in facs
15.04 12.74 13.14
.47 6.9% 4.58
37.02 26.26 §1.3¢
2782 27.56 15.90
58.94 4549 40,46
E4.04 [4.03 10,37
29.24 2619 15.58
82,53 68,73 40,09
48.98 42.40 -
7.86 5.79 4.34
10.42 1:.38 7.57
6.43 5,84 4.53
346,11 293,98 167.86
- 0.01 n.01
. 0.00 0,00
N 0.01 0.0%
212 212 112
2,12 2,12 212
84,98 68.88 41.06
145,82 102,54 .
64,34 6574 -
78.05 12484 69.64
- 32.64 1800
- 12.80 6.40
- - 43014
581 . -
161.80 134.04 -
79.18 74.53 -
49,30 43.18 -
B 37.12 18.26
220.77 171143 51,33
- 37.50 -
- 44,37 22,70
126.57 123.60 95.61
34.31 29,58 2412
£50.96 £24.59 66,67
163,13 £40.7E 92,49
- 39.08 .
175,99 141.00 o031
- - 2317
1,541,02 1,570.54 1,079.90
1,889.25 1,866.,65 1,249.89
346,11 293.98 167.86
346.11 29398 167.86
1,343.14 1.572.67 1,082.02




Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Face

Value

?

5.1 Current Investments {at FVTPL)
Unquoted Mutual Funds

Kolak Linwid Fund Reguiar Piar - Growth 1600
HDFC Liguid Fund - Regular Pian - Growin 1,000
HDFC Overight Fund - Growth 1000

Agpregate amount of Quoted Investnents

Market value of Quoted Investments

Aggregate amouat Unguoted Tavestments

Agpregate armount of impairment in value of investments

As at Asat Asat
3832022 31.3.2021 1.4.2020
Quantity Quantity  Quantity

Nos. / Units Nos. /Units  Nos, / Units

10,548 ~ 3.294
ELY1S - -

- - 4,072

As at Asat As at

31,3,2022 31,3.2024 142020

Tinlacs T in laes T infags

451.34 - 13t.97
486.28 - -

- - 120,31

937.62 - 252.08

937.62 - 25208




Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

As at As at As at

31.3.2022 31L.3.2029 1.4.2020

T in Iacs T in lacs Tin lacs

5.2 Trade Receivables
Current

Unsecured, Considered good ,992.34 2,012.42 1,971.29
Considered doubtful 22.48 39.68 541
2,014.82 2,052.10 1,976.70

Allowance for doubtful debts {22.48) {39.68) (541
1,992.34 2,012.42 1,971.29

Less: Impairment under expected credit loss (10.95) {3.93) (13.28)
1,981.40 2,008.49 1,958.00

provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

The Company has used a practical and expedient model for computing the expected credit loss allowance in respect of trade receivables based on
a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward-looking information. The
expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix. The

Ageing Expected credit loss(%)

Not due 0.00

1-90 days past due 0.21

91-180 days past due 248

181-270 days past due .90

More than 270 days past due 25.16

Age of receivables ¥ As at As at As at
31.3.2022 31.3.2021 1.4.2020

Tin lacs T in lacs Tin lacs

Not due 1,228.08 1,375.16 1,262.74

1-90 days past dug 675.45 548.57 703.11

91-180 days past due 52.85 82.56 32.43

181-270 days past due 5.49 4.68 17.10

More than 270 days past due 30.46 1.46 15.91

* Expected credit loss is worked out on the trade receivables for which no specific provision is made.

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance

Balance at the beginning of the year 393 13.28 13.28

Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at

lifetime expected credit losses 7.02 {9.35) -

Balance at the end of the year 10.95 3.93 13.28




Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

5.2,A Trade Reeeivables ageing schedule

The ageing schedule for Trade Receivable as st 31st March, 2022

Outstandtng for following periods from duc date of payment
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 |6 months - 12 2.3 More than 3 Total
months 1 year ~oyears ~2 years vears ota
Undisputed Trade receivable
Unsecured, Considered good [,228.07 728.31 6,42 29.54 . - 1,992,34
Considered doubtful - - - - 374 13.50 17.24
Disputed Trade receivable
Unsecured, Considered good - - - - . - -
Considered doubtful - - - - - 524 5.24
Total 1,228.07 728.31 6.42 29.54 374 18.74 2,014.82
The ageing schedule for Trade Receivable as at 3kst March, 2021
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 {6 months - Mare than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years Total
moaths I vear VEArs
Undisputed Trade receivable
Unsecured, Considered good 1,375.15 631.13 5.18 0.96 - - 2,012.42
Considered doubtful - - 12.59 597 12.77 3.1 34.44
Disputed Trade receivable
Unsecured, Considered good - - - - - - -
Considered doubtful - . - - - 5.24 5.24
Total 1,375.15 631.13 17.77 6.93 1277 8.35 2,052.10
The ageing schedule for Trade Receivable as at Ist April, 2020
Quistanding for following perfods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due Less than 6 {6 months - 12 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months 1 year years
Undisputed Trade receivable
Unsecured, Considered good 1,202.74 735.54 17.29 11,95 1.23 2.54 1,971.29
Considered doubtful - - - - - 0.17 0.17
Disputed Trade receivable
Unsecured, Considered good - - - - - - -
Considered doubtful . - - - - 5.24 5.24
Total 1,202.74 735.54 17.29 11.95 1.23 7.95 1,976.70




Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

As at Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021 1.4.2020
Tin laes Tinlacs g in lacs
5.3 Loans
Cuarrent
Othey Loans
Unsecured, considered good 9.72 9.65 28.01
9.72 9.65 28.01
9.72 9.65 28.01

The Company has not given any loans and advances to promoters / directos / Key Managerial Personnels (KMP) or related parties.

5.4 Other Financial Assets
Non-current
Security Deposits
Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity

Current
Other Financial Assets

w
in

Cash and Cash Eqguivalents

Balances with banks on Current accounts
Cash on hand

5.6 Other Bank Balances

Deposit accounts with more than 3 months but less than 12 months maturity

16.56 25.75 25.64
3,72 3.30 3.30
20,28 29.05 28.94
§.95 9.30 15.47
8.95 9.30 15.47
29.23 38.35 44.42
1,234.75 1,934.88 751.12
4.75 4.71 4,33
1,239.50 1.939.59 755.67
463.17 463.17 491.57
463.17 463.17 491.57
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Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

As at As at Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021 1.4.2020
Tin lacs T in lacs Tin lacs
6 INVENTORIES
Raw and Packing Materials
on hand 2,627.70 2,850.13 2,198.69
in transit 1,127.65 224.67 793.07
Waork-in-Process 7.64 379 3.43
Finished Goods ;
on hand 1,258.65 89891 694.18
in transit - - 17.36
Stock-in-trade - - .
Stores and Spares 63.54 50.34 40.89
3,085.18 4,027.84 3,747.62
Please refer Note H in Significant Accounting Policies, for mode of valuation of inventories.
7 OTHER ASSETS
Nog-current
Capital Advances 1.08 1.06 25.89
1,08 1.06 25.89
Current
GST balances 371.19 714.68 953.12
Advances to vendors 54.52 71.78 13.48
Other loans and advances inciuding duties and taxes receivable 264.36 73.71 65.68
{other than GST balances)
690.07 860.17 1,032.29
691,15 861.23 1,058.18




Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financiad Statements for the year ended 31s¢ March, 2022

Asat Asat As at
31.03,2022 31.03.202% §.4.2020¢
Tin lacs ¥ inlacs Tin lacs
4 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised shares
20,006,000 (As at 1,4,2020: 20,00,000, as at 31,3,21; 20.00,000) Equity shares of ¥ 18 each 200,00 200.00 200,00
30.06,000 (As at 1.4.2020: 30,00,600, as a¢ 31.3.21: 30,00,000) '11% Cumulative Redeemable Peefesence Shases of Rs. 10 cach 300.00 300.00 300.60
500,00 500.00 500.60
Issued shases
610,000 {As at 1.4.2020; 6,10.000. as at 31.3.2¢: 6,10,000) Equity shares of 2 10 each 61.00 61.00 61.60
SBubscribed and fully paid-up shares
6,10,000 {As at Apsil 1, 2020: 6,10,000) Equity shares of € 0 each 61,00 61,00 61,00
a} Reconcilistion of nuntber of shares
Nos. Tin lacs
As at #1.04.2020 6,10,600 61.00
Issued during the year - M
As at 31032021 6,10,000 61.00
Issued duriiyg the year ~ -
As a1 31.3.2022 6,10,000 G1.00
b} Rights, preferences and restrictions attached fo equity shares (except forfelted shares)
The Company has only onre class of equity shases having par vatue of ¥ 10 each, Each holder of equity shares is entitled 10 one vote per shase. There are no sestrictions on the distribution of
dividend or repayment of capital. The Company declares dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the
ensuing Annual General Mecting, except in case of interim dividend. in the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligtble to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their sharcholding.
t) Details of sharcholdees holding moere than 5% of equity shares
Asat Asat Asat
Name of the Sharcholders 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 01.04,2020
Nas. % of helding Nos. % of halding Nos, % of holding
Savita Oif Technologies Limited 6,10,000 100,00 10,000 1.64 10,000 1.64
Mr. G. N, Mehra* B - 3,179,500 52,05 3,17,500 52.05
Mrs. R. G, Mchra*+ - - 1,68,900 27.69 1,68,900 27.6%
Me. S. G. Mehra - - 67,100 11.0% 47,100 LEOO
*Inctudes 1,95,500 shares as at 3 1st March, 202} held as a member of Association of Persons and HUFs, whercin Mr. Gautam N. Mehra is one of the beneficiaries, and ns a trustee of family
"'Irlzcludcs 1,68,900 shares as at 315t Mareh, 2021 held as a member of Association of Persons wherein Mrs. Reshma G, Mehra is one of the beneficiaries.
d} Shares held by the promoters at the end of the year Asat Asat % Change
31.03.2022 31,03.2021 3
Nos. % of holding Nos. % of holdine CUIRE e year
Mr, G. N. Mehra* - - 3.17.500 52,05 -52.05
Mrs, R. G. Melmoa** - - 168,900 2769 -27.69
Mr, 8, G, Mehwa - - 67,100 11.00 -11.00

*Includes 1,953,500 sharcs as at 3 {st March, 2021 held ns o member of Association of Persons and HUFs, wherein Mr, Gautam N, Mehra is oute of the beneficiaries, and as o trustee of family

;'Elllcludﬂs 1,68.500 shares as at 3Est March, 2021 held as 2 member of Associztion of Persons wherein Mrs, Reshma . Mchra is one of the bencficiaries.




Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

9 OTHER EQUITY

Sceurities Premium
Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Transfer from Generai Reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Transfer from Generai Reserve

General Reserve
Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Fransfer from surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Restated Balance at beginning of the year as per Ind AS
Add: Profit for the year

Less: (ther comprehensive income arising from re-measurement of defined benefit obligation

net off fax

Less: Appropriations

Dividend paid for FY 2020-21 (amount per share ¥10}
Transfer to General Reserve

Total Apprapriations

Net retained camnings

For details of reserves, refer Statement of Changes in Equity.

Asat Asat Asat
31.03.2022 31.03.2021 1.04.2020
Tin lacs Tinlacs 7 in lacs
26.00 20.00 20.00
20.00 20,00 20,00
200.00 200,00 200.00
200.00 200,00 200.00
3,683.98 3,583.98 3,583.98
- 100,00 -
3,683.98 3,683.98 3,583.98
5,695.60 4,461.34 4,461.34
916.32 1,334.81 .
14.04 Q.58 -
6,597.88 5,795.60 4,461,34
61.00 - -
- H0.00 B
61.00 100.00 -
6,536,88 35,695.60 4,461.34
10,440.86 | 9,599.58 $,265.31

E
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Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Asat As at As at
3L03.2022 31.03.2021 1.04.2020
Tin lncs Tin tacs Tin lacs
10 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
10.1 Short-term Borrowings {Secured)
Loans Repayable on demand
Cash Credits from banks - - 7.05
Secured by ;
Secured by first hypothecation charge on entire stocks and receivables of the Company and mortgage of
fixed assets situated at plot Nos. A 2/1, 2/2, M.ED.C, Mahad.
- - 7.05
Fer details of carrying amounts of assets hypothecated / mortgaged for borrowing facilities, refer Note 29,
10,2 TFrade payables and Acceptances
Current
Trade payables
Micro and Small Enterprises 169.74 113.19 76.09
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 2,042.28 1.374.88 469.92
Acceptances 330.29 34347 1,279.26
2,542.31 2,031.54 1,825.27
{Refer Note 25 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises)
10.2 A Trade Payable ageing schedule
Ageing Schedule for Trade Payable as at 31.3.2022
Quistanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than | year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Years
Due Not disputed
Micro and Small Enterprises 169.74 - - - 169,74
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 2,368.43 0.02 245 1.67 2,372.57
Disputed dues
Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - -
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - -
Total 2,538.17 6,02 2,45 1.67 2,542.31




Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Ageing Schedule for Trade Payahle as at 31.3.202)

Qutstanding for following periods Itom due date of payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 Yeary 2-3 Years More than 3 Total

Due Not disputed

Miceo and Small Enterprises 113,19 - 113,19

Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 1,911.50 4.70 0.26 .89 1,918.35
Disputed dues

Micro and Small Enterprises N - - N -

Other than Micro and Small Enterprises - - - - -
Total 2,024.69 4.70 (.26 1.89 2,031.54
Ageing Schedule for Frade Payable as at 1.4.2020

Quistanding for Tollowing periods from diié date of payment
Less than | year £-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total

Thue Not disputed

Micro and Small Enterprises 76.09 - 76.09

Other than Micro and Smait Enterprises 1,733.73 14.75 0.30 040 1,749.18
Disputed ducs

Micro and Small Enterprises - B - - -

Other than Micro and Smalt Enterprises - - - - -
‘Fotal 1,805,827 1475 0,30 0,40 1.825.27

16,3 Other Financint Liabifitics
Current
Other financial liabilities at amortised cost
Security deposits 6.65 4,44 4.25
Employee benefits 44.04 3728 43,39
Other payables 574 11.01 2055
36.43 52.73 77.18

Note: There are no amounts due and outstanding in respect of Investor Education and Protection Fund as on 3 1st March, 2022, 3tst March, 2021 and 1st

April, 2020.




Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Asat Asat As at
31.63.2022 31.03.2021 1.4.2020
Tin lacs Tinlacs T in lacs
1 PROVISIONS
Non-current
Provisions in respect of employee benefits
Leave encashment 88.90 92.39 78.46
88.90 92.39 78.46
Current
Provisions in respeet of employee benefils
L.eave encashment 20.27 2113 24,85
Gratuity (Refer Note 30} - 0.55 20.51
2027 2170 45.36
109,17 114.09 123.82
12 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET)
Deferred Tax Liability 162.85 137.62 100.72
Deferred Tax Asset 35.89 36.90 o127
Net Deferred Tax Liabitity 126.96 100.72 39.45
Deductible temporary difference
Investment - 0.51 24.66
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 8.41 7.63 4.71
Defined benefit obligation 27.48 28.58 29.19
Actuarial Gain/Loss - 0.18 1.98
Short Term Loss carried forward Loss - - 0.74
35.89 36.90 61.27
Taxable temporary differences
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Asset 93.09 96.93 100.36
Defined benefit obligation - 0.06 0.01
Investments 69.75 40.63 0.34
Unpaid Bonus 0.0 - -
162.85 137.62 100.72
126.96 100.72 3945




Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

As at Asat As at
31.03.2022 31.03.202] 1.4.2020
Tin hacs ¥ in lacs Tinlacs
13 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Income tax deducted at source 11.96 I1.18 9.60
income tax collected at source 0.02 0.95 -
Duties and taxes 5.27 2.88 4.56
Contract Liabilities - Advances from customers 107.86 69.83 56.63
Other payables 5.19 40.05 2.63
130.30 124.91 73.42
14 CURRENT TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Current tax assets
Tax refund receivable 7.00 6.57 13.57
7.00 6.57 13.57
Current tax liabilities
Income tax payable 38.97 71.55 -
38.97 77.53 -

! f%.:?;}b,\“@l\
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Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

15 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of products
Finished and traded products
Other operating revenue
Export incentives
Revenue from Qperations

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 115 does not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

16 OTHER INCOME

Interest income
Dividend income
Net gain on sale of investments - Currens
- Nen Current
Gain on fair valuation of investments (net)
Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions and ‘Franslation (net)
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets (net)
Miscellancous income

17 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Base oils

Waxes

Packing materials
Others

20212022 2020-202t
Lin lacs Tin lacs
12,183.13 10,112.20
248,58 109.76
12,431.71 10,221.96
2426 29.15
7.27 4.01
5.68 23.14
101.46 55.28
255.94 564.24
49.18 -
2.43 -
72.39 111.83
518.63 787.65
4,694.93 3,885.02
2,214.96 2,057.4%
807.04 713.40
724.68 686.23
8,441.61 7,342.96

i
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Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

i8 PURCHASE OF TRADED GOOGDS

Waxes

19 (INCREASE) / DECREASE IN INVENTORIES

Enventories at the end of the year
Finished Goods
Work-in-Process

Inventories at the beginaing of the year
Finished Goods
Work-in-Process

20 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (Refer Note 30)

Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Contribution to employees' provident and other funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

2021-2022 2020-2021
<in lacs Zin lacs
1,253.10 B
1,253.10 -
1,258.94 §98.91
7.64 3779
1,266.58 902.70
898.91 7134
3.79 3.43
902,70 714,97
(363.88) (187.73)
742.04 679.72
70.75 63.80
39.935 35.96
852.74 779.48




Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

21 FINANCE COST

Interest Expenses

Other Borrowing Costs and Bank Charges

22 BEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION (Refer Note 3 and 4)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of intangible assets

23 OTHER EXPENSES

Stores and spares consumed

Fuel and power

Rent

Freight

Rates, taxes and octroi

Insurance

Advertisement and sales promotion

Donations

Repairs and maintenance:
Buildings
Plant and Machinery
Others

Labour Charges

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets {net)

Net Loss on sale of investments - Current
Loss on fair valuation of investments (net)
Loss on foreign currency transactions and translation (net)

Bad debis

Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net)

Corporate Social Responsibility
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to auditors

a} Audit fees

b) Other services

¢} Out of pocket expenses

2021-2022 2020-2021
Tin lacs T in lacs
2,48 12.68
52.47 33.84
54.93 46.52
108.82 86.99
0.46 0.72
109.28 87.7)
30.10 24.99
23692 186.50
66,23 534.02
268.73 295.61
974 9.74
55.07 4382
0.33 0.05
15.03 15.00
39.66 55.68
218.52 90.48
4.27 3.88
182.12 161.98

- 1.97

- 4413
13.48 0.18
7.02 25.08
22.10 40.46
222.44 184.73
1,411.76 1,240.30
4,00 315
0.85 0.85
4.85 4.00




Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022

24 The Company has spent T 22.10 lacs (Previous year ¥ 40.46 lacs) towards Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure (including capital expenditure
T Nil, Previous year T Nil) and debited the same to the Statement of Profit and Loss as against T 21.73 lacs (Previous year T 19.37 lacs) computed as
per the provisions of section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Tinlacs

2021-22¢  2020-21

Amount computed as per provisions of section 135(3) of Companies Act. 2013 21,73 19.37
L.ess: Amount spent during the year (22.10) {40.46)
Unspent / (excess) amount for the year 0.37) (21.09)
= Amount paid towards current vear 22.10 24.00
- Unspent amount of previous vear paid in current year - 16.46
Total expenses debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss 22,10 40.46

Details of amounts speat on CSR expenses:

€ in lacs

[Name of the Party ] Purpose | Amount
Sri Chaitanya Seva Trust Cataract surgeries for the poor and needy cataract patients 5.60
Deeds Public Charitable Trust Vocational and Other Education Courses for the Deaf 8.00
MMA Covid Health Center Contribution Contribution for Dedicated Covid Care Centre for treatement 8.50

of Covid-19 Patients

22.10

As at As at As at

31.3.2022 3132021 142020

Tinlacs Tinlacs Tinlacs

25 Disclosure of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined under the Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises
Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 (as available with the Company) (Refer Note 10.3)

a} The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 169.74 113.19 76.09
accounting vear
b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium - . -
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year
¢} The amount of interest due and payable for the peried of delay in making payment (which have been paid - - -
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and - - -
€) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date - - -
when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpase of disallowance of a
deductibie expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
26 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR As at As at
31.3.20622 3132021
Tin lacs Tinlacs
a) Disputed demands
- Sales Tax 4,59 4.59

27 COMMITMENTS

a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be execited on capital account and not provided for (net of advances) ¥ 103,97 Jacs,
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Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31" Marck, 2022

28 LEASES

taken on tease. All these leases are cancellable.
1) As a lessee:

a) Right-of-use assets:

The following is the movement of right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 March, 2022

The Company has entered into agreements for operating leases in respect of residential and office premises, plant and machinery and land

T inlacs
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Opening batance 15.27 15.51
Depreciation / Amortisation during the year 0.25 0.25
Any other adjustments - -
Closing balance 15.02 15.26

liability to pay lease rentals.

4) All these agreements have restriction on further leasing.

5} Agreements for office, factory premises and land provide for revision in the rent,

2% ASSETS HYPOTHICATED /! MORTGAGED AS SECURITY

Current Borrowings

Hypothecation of
i) Inventories
if) Trade receivables

3) Under these agreements refundable interest free deposits are given / taken except in case of land,

The carrying amount of assets hypothecated / mortgaged as security for borrowings are as under:

The right-of-use assets are leasehold lands, These lease rentals were paid upfront at the time of acquisition. Therefore, there is no future

b} The lease expenditure recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for short-term leases is T 66.23 facs (Previous year ¥ 54,02 lacs).

First Pari-passu Charge on
Property, plant and equipment

{Refer Note 10.1)

Asat As at As at
31.3.2022 31.3.2021 1.4.2020
¥ in lacs % in lacs T in lacs
5,085.18 4,027.84 3,747.62
1,981.40 2,008.49 1,958.00
7,066.58 6,036,33 5,705.62
858.32 811.81 779.31
838.32 81181 779.31
7,924.90 6,848.14 6,484.93




Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2022

30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Refer Note 11 and 20)

i) Defined Contribution Plan:

Company’s coatribution to Provident Fund ¥ 41.75 lacs (Previous year T 40,34 tacs).
The Company also contributes to the following:

- National Pension Scheme (NPS) : T 4.90 lacs (Previous year € 5.61 lacs)

- Labour Welfare Fund : T 0.03 lacs (Previous year ¥ 0,03 jacs)

i) Defined Benefit Plan:

The following table sets out the funded status of the Gratuity Plan and the amounts recognised in the Company's

Asat Asat Asat
31.3.2022 31.3.2021 31.3.2020
Zin lacs T in lacs ¥ in lacs
a) Change in the obligation benefits:
Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 299.15 279.75 240.53
Service cost 14,25 12.98 1L.67
Interest cost 19.65 16.90 17.97
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in
Demographic Assumptions 0.07 (1.71) -
Actuarial {Gains) / Losses on Obligations - Due to Change in
Financial Assumptions (5.64) (3.34) 1.01
Actuarial (Gains) / Losses on Obligations - Due to Experience 16.48 8.97 23.69
Benefits paid {38.28) {14.40) (15.12)
Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 305.68 299.15 279,75
b) Change in the plan assets:
Fair value of the plan assets at the beginning of the year 298.59 259.24 227.37
Expected return on plan assets 19.62 15.66 16.98
Employer's contribution 0.55 20.51 13.16
Benefits paid - (15.12)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income (7.85) 3.18 16.85
Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year 31091 298.59 259.24
Funded status (Surplus / (Deficit)) 523 (0.56) (20.51)
¢) Net Gratuity and other cost:
Service cost 14.25 12.98 11.68
Interest on defined benefit obligation (.04 1.24 0.98
Interest income - - -
Net gratuity cost 14.29 14.22 12.66
d} Amounts recognised in the statement of ether comprehensive income:
Actuarial gains / (Josses) 10.91 3.93 24,70
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income 71.85 (3.18) (16.85)
Net income / {(expense) for the period recognised in other 18.76 0.74 7.85
comprehensive income
e) Category of Assets:
Corporate Bonds - - -
Special Deposits Scheme - - -
Others 3109} 298.59 239.24
31091 298.59 259.24
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Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2022

Asat Asat Asat
31.3.2022 31.3.2021 31.3.2020
Zin lacs % in lacs ¥ in lacs
f) Assumptions used in accountiog for the Gratuity Plan:
Y% % %
Discount rate 6.96 6.57 6,04
Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.96 6.37 6.04
€) Maturity analysis of the benefit payments : from the fund
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting
1¥ Following Year 53.85 56.94 54,75
2™ Following Year 22.85 13.87 6.59
3" Following Year 43.76 2347 13.09
4" Following Year 34.82 40.93 21.44
5" Following Year 31.38 31.56 35.65
Sum of years 6 to 10 139.16 147.80 141.26

As at 31" March 2022, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 6 years (Previous year 6 years).

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation take into account the inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Sensitivity analysis:

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 305.68 299,15 279.75
Delia effect of +1% change in rate of discounting (13.50) (13.93) {15.35)
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting 14.93 15.41 17.17
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase 14.63 15.05 16.85
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of salary increase (13.50) (13.88) (15.37)
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover (0.85) (1.19 (1.61)
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover 0.92 1.28 177
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Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2022

31 DETAILS OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH IND AS 24 "RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES!

Key Management Personnck:

Mr. G. N. Mehra

Mr. 8. M. Dixit

Mr. Sidéharth G. Mehra
Mr. Suresh Kumar

Mr. R. N, Pisharody
Mr. C. V., Alexander
M. §. K. Bansal

Director

Director

Addittonal Director (From 03.11.2021)
Non Executive Independent Director

Non Executive Independent Director (From 03.11.2021)

Director (upto OF.§1.2021)

Non Executive Independent Director {upto 01.11.2021)

Enterprises where key munagement personnel or relatives of key management persennel have control or significant influence:

Basant Lok Trading Company Pvt Ltd.
Gautam & Co.

Mansukhmat Investments Pvt. Lid.

N. K. Mehra Trust

Savita Petro-Additives Ltd.

Chemt Pharmex Pvi. Lid.

Khatri lavesiments Pvt. Ltd.

(GNM SGM Family Trust

NEM Grand Chitdren'’s Trust

Savita Finance Corporation Ltd.

Relatives of key management personnel and refationship

Ms. §. G. Mchea - Daughter of Mr. G. N, Mehra
Mrs, R. G. Mehra - Wife of Mr. G. N, Mehra

Details of transactions during the year:

A, Enterprises:

a} Sale of goods:

b) Sale of shares

c) Purchase of goods:

d) Purchase of property, plant and equipment:

€) Dividend received:

£) Dividend paid:

£) Rent paid;

Savita Oit Technologies Limited
Chemi Pharmex Pvt. Ltd.

Mansukhmal Investments Pyt Lid
Naved Investment and Trading Co.Pvt. Lid.

Savita Qil Technologies Limited
Savita Oil Technologies Limited
Savita Petro-Additives Lid,
Savita Oil Technologies Limited
Chemi Pharmex Pvt. Ltd,

Khatri Investments Pvt. Lid.

Mansukhmal Investments Py, Ltd.
GNM 8GM Family Trust

Naved Investment and Trading Co. Pvt. Ltd,

Chiemi Pharmex Pvt. Lid.
Savita Qil Technologies Limited

D. C. Mchra Public Charitable Trust
Kurla Trading Co. Pvt. Lid.
Naved Investment and Trading Co.Pvi.

Savita Gl Technologies Lid.

2021-2022
Tin facs

661.00
68.39

3.02
(.06

92147
6.23
0.0t

1.00
0.0
231
2.3t
12.20
0.04

18.2¢
43.19

Ltd.

2020-2021
T in lacs

396.98
334.66

1,075.72

18.19
43.19
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Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

h} Denations: 0. C. Mehra Public Charitable Trust
N. K. Mehra Trust

B. Key management personnel;
a) Dividend paid: Mr. G. N. Mehra
Mr. Siddharth G Mehra

Mr, S, K. Bansal
Mr. Suresh Kumar
Mr, R. N. Pisharody

b) Commission and sitting fees

C. Relatives of key management personneh:
) Dividend paid; Mrs. Reshima G Mehra

Short term employcee benefits
Post employment benefits
Medical benefits

1) Remuneration:

Asat As at
Balance outstanding : 31.3.2022 31.3.2021
Tin kacs ¥ inlacs
Debit Credit Debit
Enterprises:
Chemi Pharmex Pvt. Lid. - - 290.64
Savita Cil Technologics Limited 22.60 33011 53.87

2021-2022
Tin lacs

19.55
6.71

1.20
115

16.90
38.69

2.03
G.85

As at
1.4.2020
T infacs
Debit

Credit

12.41

109.95 37.92

2020-2021
¥inlacs

7.50
7.50

1.03
1.05

331
1.84
0.76

Credit

8578




Savita Polymers Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31* March, 2022

32 DETAILS OF SEGMENT REPORTING

The Company is a one business segment company, in the business of manufacturing and selling petroleum speciality products. However,
as the Company has several geographical segments, secondary segment disclosures are given below,

Secondary Business Segment: 2021-22 2020-21
Zin lacs ¥ in lacs

Revenue by Geographical Segment
Pomestic 6,257.27 5,237.77
Export 3,925.86 4,874.43

12,183.13 10,112.20
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33 Tax expense

(a) Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

< in lacs
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.3.2022 31.3.2021
Current tax expense
Current year 239.72 310.19
Changes in estimates relating to prior years 8.50 (5.90%
248.22 304.29
Deferved tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 26.24 6127
Change in tax rate . -
Adjustment recognised in the period for current tax of prior periods - -
26,24 61.27
Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 27446 365.56
(b} Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31.3.2022
Particulars Before tax] Tax (expense) Net of tax
/ benefit
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans (18.76) 4.72 {14.04)
(18.76} 4.72 (14.04
Year ended 31.3.2021
Particulars Before tax] Tax (expense) Net of tax
/ benefit
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans (0.74) 0.19 {0.55)
(0.74) .19 {0.55)
{c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Particulars Year ended]  Year ended
i 31.3.2022 31.3.2021
Profit before tax 1,190.78 1,700.37
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 299.70 427,95
Increase / (decrease) due to change in tax rate - -
Tax effeet of:
Non-deductible tax expenses / disallowances under Income Tax Act 2.0 9.95
Tax-exempt income and deductions under Chapter VI A of Income Tax Act - -
Allowable income tax on indexation of investment property - -
Temporary difference recognised in deferred taxes (45.03) (69.15)
Others 8.58 2.52
Excess provision of tax of prior periods 8.50 (5.90)
Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 4.72 0.19
Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 274.46 365.56
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{d) Movement in deferred tax balances

T in lacs
Net| Recognised| Recognised] Net balance]l Deferredl Deferred
Particulars balance| in profit or in OCly 31.3.2022{ tax asset fax
1.4.2021 loss liabitity
Leave encashment (28.53) 1.05 - (27.48) (27.48) -
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 96.93 (3.84) - 93.09 - 93.09
favestment in quoted equity instruments - 5.45 - 5.45 - 5.45
Investment in equity oriented mutual funds 40.12 2418 - 64.30 - 64.30
Provision for doubtful debts and advances {7.63) (0.78) - (8.41) (8410 -
Gratuity and Bonug .17 0.18 - .01 - 0.01
Tax assets / (linbilitics) 100.72 206.24 - 126.96 (35.89) 162.85
¢ in lacs
Net| Recognised! Recognised Netf Deferred| Deferred
Particulars balanee| in profit or in OCI balance;  tax asset ) ‘t‘ax
1.4,2020 foss 31.3.2021 Linbility
Leave encashment (29.19) (.61 - {28.58) (28.58) -
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 100.36 (3.43) - 96.93 - 96.93
Investment in quoted equity instruments 9.24) 8.74 - 0.51) {0.51) B
Investment in equity oriented mutual funds (15.42) 56.05 - 40.63 - 40.63
Investment in unguoted martual funds 0.34 (0.34) - - - -
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 4.71) (2.93) - {7.63) (7.63) -
Gratuity and Bonus (197 1.78 - (0.18) 0.18) -
Defined benefit obligation - .06 - .06 - 0.06
Carry Forward Losses / Unabsorbed depreciation 0.74) 0.74 - - - -
Tax assets / (liabilities) 3945 61.27 - 100.72 {36.903]  137.62
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3

(i)

(i)

Financial Instruments : Accounting classifications and fair value measurements

Accounting classifications

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are determined at the amount at which the instrument coutd be exchanged {n a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale,

The fotlowing methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, bank balances, short term deposits, trade payables, payables for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment, short term loans from banks, financial institutions and other current financial asseis and fabilities are considered to be the same as their fuir
values, due to their short-term nature.

Fair value measurements
The Company uses the following hierarchy for delermining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique;
Level 1+ Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the fowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly o7 indirectly observable

Level 3 -— Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable,

The following table presents carrying vatue and fair value of financial instruments by categories and also fait value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at
fair value :

As at 31" March. 2022

<in lacs
i Careving Classifieation _ Fair Value
Particulars Note Val'ue Amaortised
FVTPL | FVTOQCI Cost Level { Leved 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Investnients
[nvestment in equity shares (quoted) 3l 346,11 346,11 . - 346.11
[nvestment in equity shares (unguoted) 5.1 212 - - pAY: - - -
[nvestment in equity oriented mutual funds 5.1 L3412 1,541.02 - - 1,541.02 . -
Investment in mutual funds 31 937.62 937,62 « - 937.62 . -
Trade feceivables 52 1,981 .40 - - 1,981.40 - - -
Loans and Advances
Leans to employees / Qthers 53 9.72 . . .72 . - .
Other financial assets
Other receivables 54 29.23 - - 29.23 - N -
Cash and cash equivalents 5.3 1,239.50 - - 1,239.50 - B -
Bank balances 5.6 463,17 - - 463.17 - - -
6,549.89 282476 - 372513 2,824.76 - .
Financial Liabilities
Berrowiags
Shorl term loan from Bank 10,1 - - - - - R .
Trade payables and acceptances 102 2,542.3% - - 2,542.31 - . -
Other financial labilities
Others 103 3643 . - 56.43 . . R
2,598.74 - - 2,598.74 . - -
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Tin lacs
As at 31" Mareh, 2021
Particatars Note C“Vz:ﬁ::g Classifieation T Fair Value
FYVTPL FVFOCH Cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial asscis
Investments
Investment in equity shares (quoted) 5.1 2493.98 29398 - . 293.98 - .
Investment in equity shares (unguoted) 5.1 213 - - 2,13 - - -
Investment in equity oriented mutual funds 5.1 1,570.54 1,570.54 - - 1.570.54 B
fnvestment ia mutual funds 5.1 - - . - - . -
‘Frade receivables 5.2 2,008.49 - - 2.008.49 - - -
Loans and Advances
Loans 1o employees/ Others 53 9.65 - - 9.635 - - -
Other fnancial assets
Other receivables 54 38.35 - “ 38.35 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 55 1,939.5% - - 1,939.59 - - -
Bank balances 5.6 463.17 - - 463,17 . - .
6,325,90 1,864.52 - 4,461.37 1,864,52 - -
Financial Lizbilitics
Borrowings
Short ternt loan from Bank 10,1 - - - - - - -
Trade payables and acceptances 10.2 203154 - - 2,031.54 - - -
Other financiad liabilities
Others 10.3 52,73 - - 52.73 - - B
2,084.27 - - 2,084.27 - - -

During the reporting period ending 31™ March, 2022 and 31% March, 2021, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and ne
transfer into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

(iii} Description of significant observable inputs to valuation:

The foliowing table shows the valuation techniques used o determine fair vatue ;

Type

Valuation technique

Investments in equity shares (unquoted)

Based on book value

Investment in mutual fund

Based on NAV

Loan to employees

Based on prevailing market interest rate

Loans from foreign banks

Fair valued based on prevailing exchange rate at each closing date

Deerivative instruments

Based on quotes from banks and financial institutions
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35 Financial risk management
Risk management framework

The Company has put in place Risk Management Policy, objectives of which are 10 optimize business performance, to promote confidence
amaongst the Company’s stakeholders in the effectiveness of its business management process and its ability to plan and meet its strategic objectives.
The Company has a Risk Management Committee (RMC) comprising senior executives which is responsible for the review of risk management
processes within the Company, and for overseeing the implementation of the requirements of this policy. The RMC provides updates to the Board
on a regular basis on key risks faced by the Company, and the relevant mitigant actions. At an operational level, the respective functional MANAgers
are responsible for identifying and assessing risks within their area of responsibility; implementing agreed actions to treat such risks; and for
reporting any event or circumstance that may result in new risks. The Company’s risk management system is {ully aligned with the corporate and
onerational obiectives,

The Board of Directors of the Company and the Audit Commitiee of Directors periodically review the Risk Management Policy of the Company so
that the management controls the risks through properly defined network,

The Company has identified financial risks and categorised them in three parts viz. (i) Credit Risk, (ii) Liquidity Risk and (iii) Market Risk. Details
regarding sources of risk in each such category and how Company manages the risk is explained in following notes:

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the possibility of a customer or other counterparties not meeting their obligations and terms and conditions which would result
into financial losses. Such risk arises mainly from trade receivables and investments. Credit risk is managed through internal credit control
arechanism such as credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the
Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that
eepresents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables and investments, The maximum exposure to credit risk in case of
ait the financial instruments covered below is restricted 1o their respective carrying amount,

Trade receivables
The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the following;

Petroleum Products Segment ~ As per the credit policy of the Company, generally no credit is given exceeding the accepted credit norms. The
Company deals with large corporate houses after considering their credit standing, The credit policy with respect to other customers is strictly
monitored by the Company at periodic intervals. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing eredit limits and continuously
monitoring the credit worthiness of customers. In addition, for amounts recoverable on exports, the Company has adequate insurance to mitigate
overseas customer and country risk.

As at 31.3.2022, the Company’s most significant customers accounted for T 845,05 lacs of the trade receivables carrying amount (Previous year ¥
[097.19 facs).

The Company uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit losses of trade receivables (which are considered good). The following table
provides information about the exposure to credit risk and loss allowance (including expected credit loss provision) for trade receivables:

< in lacs

Ageing Gross Carrying Expected Credit Credit Loss Net Carrying
Amount] Loss Rate (%) Amount

Not due 1,228.08 0.00 - [,228.08
1-90 days past due 675.45 0.21 142 674.03
91-180 days past due 52.85 2.48 1.31 51.54
18£-270 days past due 5.49 2.90 0.54 4.95
More than 270 days past due 30.46 25.16 7.67 22.80
1,992.34 10,95 1,981.40

Note : Expected credit loss is worked out on the trade receivable for which no specific provision is made.
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Cash and cash equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of ¥ 1,239.50 lacs at 31.3.2022 {Previous year ¥ 1939.59 lacs). The cash and cash equivalents
are beld with banks with good eredit ratings.

favestments

The Company invests its surplus funds mainly in liquid schemes of mutual funds, which carry no / low mark to market risks for short
duration and therefore, does not expose the Company to credit risk. Such investments are mate after reviewing the credit worthiness and
market standing of such funds and therefore, does not expose the Company to credit risk. Such investments are monitored on a regular
basis.

Security Deposit

The Company has taken premises on lease and has paid security deposits. Since the Company has the ability to adjust fhe deposit with
future lease payments, therefore, does not expose the Company to credit risk.

(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations on due date. The Company has a strong focus on
effective management of its liquidity to ensure that all business and financial commitments are met on time. This is ensured through proper
financial planning with detailed annual business plans, discussed at appropriate levels within the organisation. Annual business plans are
divided into quarterly plans and put up to management for detailed discussion and an analysis of the nature and quality of the assumptions,
parameters etc. Daily and monthly cash flows are prepared, followed and monitored at senior levels to prevent unduc loss of inferest and
utilise cash in an effective manner, Cash management services are availed to avoid any loss of interest on collections. In addition, the
Company has adequate, duly approved borrowing limits in place with reputed banks,

{a) Financing arrangements

The Company has aa adequate fund and non-fund based limits with various banks. The Company’s diversified source of funds and strong
operating cash flow enables it to maintain requisite capital structure discipline. The financing produets include working capital loans,
buver’s credit loan ete.

(b) Maturitics of financial liabilities
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Tin lacs
As at 31.3.2022 Less than one 1to5 years h’.Iore’than Total
year Five Years
Borrowings (including current maturities of long-term
debts) - - - -
Trade payables 2,542.31 - - 2,542.31
Other financial Habilities (other than derivative
liabilitics) 36.43 - - 56.43
Total 2,598.74 - - 2,598.74
As at 31,3.2021 Less than one 1 to 5 years N;lore than Total
year Five Years

Borrowings (including current maturities of long-term
debts) . . - .
Trade payables 2,031.54 - - 203154
Other financiaf liabilities (other than derivative
liabilities) 32.73 - - 52,73
Derivative Liabilities - - - -
Total 2,084.27 - - 2,084.27

Less than one More than -
As at 1.4.2020 vear 1to 5 years Five Years Total
Borrowings (including current maturities of long-term 7.05 - - 7.05
Trade payables 1,825.27 - - 1,825.27
liabilities) 77.18 - - 77.18
Derivative Liabilities - - - .
Total 1,909.56 - - 1,909.50
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(i) Market Risk

The risk that the fair vatue or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because

of ¢changes in market price. Market risk further comprises of (a)
Currency risk, (b) Interest rate risk and (¢) Commodity risk,

(8} Currency Risk

The Company is exposed to currency risk mainly on account of its import payables and export receivables in foreign currency. The major exposures of the
Company are in U.S. dollars. The Company hedges its inport foreign exchange exposure mainly through exports and depending upon the market situations

through options and forward foreign cusrency coatracts if necessary. The Company has a policy in place for hedging its foreign currency borrowings along with
interest. The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Exposure to currency risk - The currency profile of financiat assets and financial liabilities is as below:

As at 31.3.2022 As at 31.3.2021
Particulars Exposure in Exposure in
Tia lacs USh {INR Tinlacs] USH (INR
terms) terms)
Financiai asseis
Trade and other receivables 735,00 9.69,872 590,40 8,07.404
Cash and cash equivalents 1,128.07 14,88,615 ,768.38 24,18,461
Net exposure for assets - A 1,863.07 24,58,487 2,358.78 32,25 865
Financizal Habilities
Trade Payables 1,644.87 21,70,001 1,217,773 16,65,384
Other firanciat liabilities 20.99 28,231 20.07 27,443
Less: Forgign currency forward exchange contracts - - - -
Net exposure for Habilities - B 1,665.86 21,98,232 1,237.80 16,923,827
Net exposure (A-B) 197.21 2,60,255 1,120.98 15,33,038
As at 31.3,2022 As at 31.3.2021
Exposure in Exposure in
Particulars i Other Foreign . Other Foreign
in lacs : T in lacs :
Currencies Currencies
(ENR ferms) {INR terms)
Financial assels
Trade and other receivables 1.51 1,795 - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - - -
Net exposure for assels - A 1.51 1,795 - -
Financial lisbiities
Trade payables - - - -
Other financial Habilities - - - -
Less: Foreign currency forward exchange contracts - - - .
Net exposure for labilities - B - B - -
Net exposure (A-B) 1.51 1,795 - -
The following exchange rates have been applied at the end of the respective years
31.3.2022F 3132021
k4 4
USD 1 73.79 73.12

Sensitivity analysis
The table below shows seasitivity of open forex exposure to USD / INR movement. We have considered 1% (+/ -} change in USD / INR movement, increase

indicates appreciation in USD / INR whereas decrease indicates depreciation in USD / INR, The indicative 1% movement is directionat and does not reflect
management forecast on currency movement.

Impact en profit or loss due to % increase / (decrease) in currency

Tinlacs
Particalars 2021-22 2020-21
Increase| (Decrease)| Increasel {Decrease)
Movement (%) 1% 1% 1% 1%
UsSh (197} 1.97 (£1.21) 12
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(b} Interest rate risk

Interest rate sisk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrurment will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps. Under these swaps, the Company agrees with
other parties to exchange, at specified intervals (i.e. quarterly), the difference between fixed contract rates and floating rate interest amounts
calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts. The management also maintains a portfolio mix of floating and fixed rate debt.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk,

The Company is not exposed to significant interest rate risk during the respective reporting periods.

fnierest rate risk exposure:
Company’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings. The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to
the management of the Company is as follows:

Tin kacs
Carrying amount a5 at 31.3.2022 332021 1.4.2020
Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assets

Financial liabilities
Variable-rate instruments
Financial assets -

Financial liabilities 330.29 543.47 1,286.31

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 25 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) profit or loss by the
amounts shown below. The indicative 25 basis point (0.25%) movement is directional and does not reflect management forecast on interest raje

This antalysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Tin lacs
Particulars 2621-22 2020-21
Floating rate borrowings 0.83 1.36

{¢) Commodity Risk
Raw Material Risk

Timely availability and afso non-availability of good quality base oils / other imporis from across the globe could negate the qualitative and
quantifative production of various products of the Company. Volatility in prices of erude oil and base oil is another major risk for this segment. The
Company procures base oils from various suppliers scattered in different parts of the world. The Company tries to enter into long term supply
contracts with regular supplices and at times buys base 0ils on spot basis.

Capital management

The Company’s policy is 1 maintain a strong capital base s¢ as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain future development of
the busingss. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary sharcholders.

i} Debt Equity Ratio
The Company monitors capital using debt equity ratio. The Company's debt to equity ratios arc as follows:
Tinlacs
Particulars 31.3.2022 31.3.2021 1.4.2020
Total borrowings (Refer note 11.1 and 11.2) - - 7.05
Totat equity (Refer note 9 and 10) 10,501.86 9,660.58 8,326.31
Debt to Equity ratio - - (.01

it} Dividends
Dividends paid during the year
Zinfacs

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21

Dividend Rate per share T 10.00 -
Amount (% in lacs) 61.00 -
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36 First thme adoption of Ind AS

36.1 Mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions

Transition to Ind AS

These are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the
Comapany had prepared its financial statements in accordance with Companies (Accounting Standards} Rules, 2014, notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant provisions of the Act (IGAAP").

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing these Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March
2021 and the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet on the date of transition (i.e. Ist April 2020).

In preparing its Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 1st April 2020 and in presenting the comparative information for the year ended 31st
March 2021, the Company has adjusted amounts previously reported in the Financial Statements prepared in accordance with
IGAAP. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Comapny in restating its Financial Statements prepared in
accordance with IGAAP, and how the transition from IGAAP to Ind AS has impacted the Comapny financial position, financial
performance and cash {lows.

Exemptions and exceptions availed

In preparing the Financial Statement, the Company has availed the below mentioned optional exemptions and mandatory
exceptions.

A. Exceptions :

1 Classification and measurement of financial assets
As permitted under Ind AS 101, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets based on facts and
circumstances that exist on the date of transition. In line with Ind AS 101, measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised
cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.

2 Estimates
Ind AS estimates as at Ist April, 2020 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with [GAAP.
Company has made estimates for following items in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required
under IGAAP;
- investment in equity instruments carried at FVTPL;
- impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model;

B. Optional exemptions :

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Conmpany has availed the cxemption available under Ind AS 101 to continue the carrying value for all of its Property, Plant
and Equipment and Intangible Assets as recognised in the Financial Statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as
per the IGAAP.

i
B i:)
)
el Sf‘x
.
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36.2 First time adoption reconciliations

Lffect of Ind AS adoption on the balance sheet as at 315t March, 2021 and st April, 2020

Tinlacs
As at 31,3,2021 As at 14,2020
. (End 0”1?:&‘;;:’38?;??“ under {Bate of Transition)
Particulars Eltoct of Effecc ot
Péi:":;" transition to Ind| 1Ind AS Pg;:::;s transition to| Ind AS
AS End AS
Non-current assets
a. Property, Plant and Equipments 886.36 1526 §71.10 859.13 1551 843.62
b. Capital Work-in-Progress 5330 N 53.30 $2.72 0.00 272
¢. ROU Asset - (15.26) 15.26 . {1551} £5.51
&. Other Tntangible Assets 093 - 0.93 1.66 - 1.66
e. Financial Assets
(i) Investments 1,517.93 (34872)] 1,866.65 { 1,467.38 20749 | 1,249.89
(i) Trade Receivables - - . -
(iii) Loans . - - -
{vi) Others (29.05) 29,05 - (28.94) 28.94
£ Other non-current assets 493,28 492,22 1.06 559,98 534.09 2589
Total non-current assets 2,951.80 11444 | 2,83736 | 2,900.87 722.64 2,178.23
Current assets
a. Inventories 4,027,584 - 4,027.84 3,747.62 - 3,747.62
b. Financial Assets
(i) Investiments . - - 250.12 (1.96) 252.08
(ii) Trade Receivables 2,012.42 393 200849 197120 13.29 1,958,00
(iii} Cush and Cash Equivalents 1,939.59 - 1,939.59 755.67 - 755.67
(iv) Bank balances other thaa (iii) above - {463.17) 463.17 - (49150 4%1.57
(v) Loans 9.635 - 965 28.01 - 28.01
(vi) Cthers 9.30) 9.30 (1547 13.47
c. Current Fax Assets {Net) . - (13.57) 13.57
d. Other Current Assels §69.55 9.38 860.17 | 1,047.84 15.55 1,032,29
Total current assets 8,859.05 {455.15)| 9,318.20 ] 7,800.54 {493,714} 8,294.28
Total assets 11,810.85 (344.72)| 12,155.56 | 10,701,41 228,89 10,472.51
Equity
a. Equity share capital 61.00 - 61.00 61.00 - 61.00
b. Other equity 9,300.69 (298.89)] 9,599.58 1 847073 205.42 8.265.31
Total equity {shareholders’ funds as per previous
GAAF) 9,361.69 (298.8%] 9,660.58 | 8,531.73 205,42 8,326.31
Linbilitics
1. Non-curyent liabilities
a. Financial Habilities
(i) Borrowings - - - - - -
b. Provisions 92.39 - 92.3% 78.46 - 7845
c. Deferred tax liabitity (net) 54.82 {45.90) 100,72 62.84 2339 3945
d. Other non-current liabilities . - - - - -
Total non-current liabilities i47.21 (45.90) 193.11 141.30 23.39 119
2. Current Liabilities
a Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings - - - .05 . 7.05
(ii} Trade pavables 2,038.74 720 203154 1,827.61 234 1,825,27
(itl) Other financial tiabilities . (39.94) 59.94 - (77.18) 7718
b. Other cureent liabilities 170,53 52,82 117.71 148.36 74.94 73.42
¢. Provisions 21,70 - 21.70 45.36 - 45.36
d. Current tax liabilities {nel) 7098 - 70.98 - - -
Total current liahilities 2,301.95 (.08 2,301.87 2,028.38 0.10 2,028.28
‘Total linbilities 2,449,16 (45.82)| 2,d494.98 [ 2,169.68 23.49 2,146.19
Total equity and liabititics 11,316.35 (344.71)] 12,15556 | 10,7G1.41 228.90 10,472,51
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Reconciliation of total equity as at 31st Mareh, 2021 and 1st April, 2020

T in lacs
As at As at
31.03.2021 | 01.04.2020
Total equity {sharchelders’ funds) under previous GAAP 9,361.69 | 8,53L.73
Ind AS transition adjustments {205.42) -
Fair valuation of financial assets 564.25 {215.33)
(Provision)/ Write back for expected credit loss 9.36 (13.28)
Deferred tax (69.30) 23.39
Total adjustment to cquity 298.89 (205.42)
Total equity as per Ind AS 9,660.58 | 8,326.31
Effect of Ind AS adoption on the statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021
¥ in lacs
Previou Effect of
(:\APS transition | Ind AS
to Ind AS
Revenue from operations 10,469.17 24721 | 10,221.96
Other income 223.40 (564.24) 787.64
Total Income {A) 10,692.57 (317.03)1 11,009.60
Expeaditure
Cost of Materials Consumed 7,342.96 0.00 7.342.96
Purchase of Stock-in-trade . - -
Progress (187.73) -0.00 (187.73)
and stock-in-trade
Excise duty - - .
Employee Benefits Expense 780.22 0.74 779.48
Finance Costs 46.52 0.00 46.52
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 87.71 0.00 87.71
Other Expenses 1,496.86 256.57 1,240.29
Total Expenditure (B) 9,566.54 25732 9,309.22
Profit / (Loss) for the year before tax (A-B) 1,126.03 (574.35)] 1,700.38
Tax Expenses
Current Tax 310,00 - 310.00
Deferred Tax (8.03) - 6l.46
Tax adjustments of previous years (ngt) {5.90) - (5.90)
296.07 - 365.56
Profit / (Loss) for the year from continuing operations 829.96 (574.35)) 1,334.82
Profit for the year after tax 829.9¢ (574.35)] 1,334.82
Other Comprehensive Income
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
benefit pians - - (0.74)
i} Income tax refated to such items - - 0.19
Total comprehensive income (i ~ H) - - {0.56)
Total comprehensive income for the period 829.96 {574.35)F 1,334.27
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Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31st Mareh, 2021

Tin lacs
Particulars Amount
Profit as per previous GAAP* 829.96
Adjustments :
i) Fair valuation on Long term investment 566.21
i} Fair valuation of current investment (1.97)
iii} Acturial Gain on Gratuity to be taken to Other Comprehensive income 0.74
iv) {Provision) / Write back for expetted credit loss 9.36
v} Recognition of deferred taxes as per Ind AS (69.48}
Total effeet of transition to Ind AS 504.86
Profit for the year as per Ind AS 1,334.82
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (0.56)
Total comprehensive income for the period as per Ind AS 1,334.26

* Under previous GAAP, total comprehensive income was not reported. Therefore, the above reconciliation starts

with profit under the previous GAAP.

Effcct of Ind AS adoption on the statement of cash flows for the year ended 31st March, 2021

¥ in lacs
Year ended 31.3.2021
Previ Effect of
(r;;:;};fs transition to | Ind AS
Ind AS

Net cash flows from operating activities 1,030.50 28.41 1,002.09
Net cash flows from investing activities 160.46 - 160.46
Net cash flows from financing activities (7.05) (28.41) 21.36
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 1,183.91 0,00y 1,183.91
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the period 1,039.59 . 1,039.59
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36.3 Notes to the reconciliations

1

Fair valuation of investments

Under previous GAAP, long term investments were measured at cost less diminution in the value which is other than temporary.
Under Ind AS, these assets are classified as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). On the date of]
transition to Ind AS, these financial assets have been measured at their fair value which is lower than the cost as per previous GAAP,
resulting in an decrease in the carrying amount by ¥ 217.50 lacs as at Ist April, 2020 and increase in carrying amount by ¥ 348.72
lacs as at 31st March, 2021. The corresponding deferred taxes have also been recognised as at 1st April, 2020 and as at 31st March
2021. The result of these changes is decrease in total equity as at Ist April, 2020 by ¥ 217.50 lacs, increase in profit before tax by T
366.21 lacs for the year ended 3 1st March, 2021.

Under previous GAAP, current investiments were measured at lower of cost or fair value. Under Ind AS, these assets are classified as
financial assets measured at FYTPL. On the date of transition ta Ind AS, these financial assets have been measured at their fair value
which is higher than the cost as per previous GAAP, resulting in an increase in the carrying amount by T 1.97 lacs as at 1st April,
2020. The corresponding deferred taxes have also been recognised as at 1st April, 2020. The result of these changes is an increase in

total equity as at 1st April, 2020 by ¥ 1.97 lacs, reversal of profit before tax by  1.97 lacs for the year ended 31st March, 2021 due
1o sale of investment.

Trade receivables

Under Indian GAAP, the Comapny has created provision for impairment of receivables only in respect of specific amount for
incurred fosses. Under Ind AS, impairment allowance has been determined based on expected credit Joss (ECL) model. Due to ECL
model, the Comapny impaired its trade receivable by T 13.28 lacs on Ist April, 2020 which has been eliminated against retained
earnings. The reduction in ECL of ¥ 9.36 lacs for year ended on 31st March, 2021 has been recognized in the statement of profit and
loss, Moreover, all trade receivables are now classified as current financial assets as per Ind AS.

Other comprehensive income
Under previous GAAP, there was no concept of other comprehensive income. Under Ind AS, specified items of income, expense,
gains or losses are required to be presented in other comprehensive income,

Employee benefits

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind AS, the Comapny recognised costs related to its post-employment defined benefit plan on an
actuarial basis. Under Indian GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to profit or loss, Under Ind AS,
remeasurements are to be recognised under other comprehensive income. Consequently, the tax effect of the same has also been
recognised in other comprehensive income under Ind AS instead of profit or loss. On the date of transition, this change does not
affect total equity. For the year ended 31st March, 2021, the employee benefit expenses are reduced by ¥ 0.56 lacs and are
recogaised under other comprehensive income (net of deferred tax).

Deferred tax

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable
profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet
approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or Hability in the balance sheet and its tax
base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not
required under Indian GAAP.

In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the Comapny
has to account for such differences, Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
retained earnings or a separate component of equity. On the date of transition, the net impact on deferred tax assets is of T 23.39 lacs
with corresponding impact on retained earning. For the year ended 3 1st March, 2021, deferred tax expenses are increased by ¥ 69,48
lacs.

As per Ind AS, cash and cash equivalents are shown as a separate item and other bank balances are shown separaely.

As per Ind AS, certain assets and liabilities are reclassified as financial assets or liabilities based on the recognition criteria for
financial assct or financial liability.
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37 The Company’s operations 3t Mahad Manufacturing facility were adversely impacted in fuly, 2021 due to flood causing damage to certain fixed assels and some of the inventory,

Ne':cessar}' actions were taken o restore normal operations within 45 days thereafier, The Company’s fixed assets and inventory are fully insured and the Company is in the process of
filing and claiming loss from the insurance company.

38 Details of Working Capital Loan
in case of borrowings from banks, quarterly stock statements are submitted to the binks and there are no naterial discripancies with books of account.

39 Financisl Ratios

Particular Numerator Desominator 2021-20221 2020-2021{% Yariznce Reason
a) Cusrent Ratio Cumrent Assets | Current Eiabilitics 3.74 4.04 (7.46)
b} Return on equity satio (%) Net Profit after  jAverage 9,09 i4.84 (38.76)| Net profit for FY 20-21 was higher compare 1o
taxes sharcholder's Equity current year due to gain on fair valuation of
Evestment.
¢) Inventory tumover ratio COGs Average Inventory 2035 £.84 1127
d} Trade receivables furmover ratio Net credit sales | Average account 6.75 5.61 20.35
e} Trade payables jumover ratio Net credit Average trade 5.62 4,98 12.77
purchases payables
1) Net capital turnover ralio Net sales Working capital 1.70 .54 10.26
£} Net profit ratie {%) Net Profit Net Sales 7.37 13.06 (43.35)] Net profit for FY 20-21 was higher compare to
cureent year due to gain on fair valuation of
Investment,
i} Retwm on capital employed (36) EBIT Capital Employed 11.72 17.9G (34.51)| Net profit for FY 20-21 was higher compare to
currgnt year due to gain on fair valaation of
Tavestment.
i} Return on itvestinent

During the financial year 2021-22, increase in the cost of major inputs, mainly base oils, resulted in enhanced cost of raw and packing matertals consumption and enhanced net
realization of finished products, As a consequence, ratios based on the sales, purchases, inventories and receivables have witnessed substantial variance compared to last financials

4

o

Additional repulatory information

a) To the best of the Company’s knowledge and information, there are no transactions which are not recosded i the books of account or have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the Lax assessments under Income Tax Act, 1961,

b) To the best of the Company’s knowledge and information, the company does not deal with the struce ofF companies.

¢} The Company lmas registered charpes with Registrar of Comgpanies (RoC) wherever applicable,

d} The company is not declared as willful defaulter by any bank or Financial Institution or any lender.

¢} The funds borrowed for shiort tenu purposes have not been utilized for any other purpose f losg tenn purposes

f) The Company does not hold any besami property and ne proceedings have been iniliated or pending against the comgpany for holding any benami property under the Benami
Trangactions (Prokibition) Act, 1988 (43 of 1988) and zules made theresnder

¢} The Company does not trade or invest in crypto currency.

h} During the year, Shares of the Company were acquired by Savita Oil Technologies Limited (SOTL) making it a wholly owned subsidiaey of SOTL. The company intends to merge
with SOTL and the necessary steps have been taken / will be taken for the approvaf of the scheme of merger of the Company with SOTL.

41 Basic and diluted enrnings per share: 2021-2022 2020-2021
Profit after tax for basic camings per share { in Lacs) 916.32 1,334.81
Weighted average number of equaty shares outstanding (Nos} 6,10,000 6,410,000
Nominal value of the share (¥} 10 ]
Basic and dituted eamnings per equity share (¥) 150.22 218.82

42 Previous year's figuses have been regrouped / rearmanged whesever necessary to confommn to those of current year classification.

43 The Company continues to assess the possible impact of Covid-19 on its financial results based on the intemal and external information available up 10 the date of approval of these
financial results and concluded that ne adjustment is required in these results. Based on assessment of business and economic conditions, the Company expects to recover the carrying
amounis of its assets.

For and on behaif of the Board
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1. Corporate Information

Savita Polymers Limited (“the Company”) is a Public Limited Company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 and domiciled in India.

The Company is engaged mainly in the business of manufacture and sale of petroleum speciality

products like Transformer Oils, Liquid Paraffin, Cable Filling and Flooding compounds, Petroleum Jellies
and Waxes.

Authorization of financial statements

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of
Directors passed on 30" May, 2022.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation and
presentation of these financial statements.

A. Basis of preparation of financial statements

Hh

Compliance with Ind AS

The financial statements have been prepared to comply, in all material aspects, with the
Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013.

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company under Ind AS.
The date of transition to Ind AS is 1st April, 2020. Refer Note 36 for an explanation of how the
transition from previous Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) to Ind AS has
affected the Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

Classification of assets and liabilities

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on the
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the
Companies Act, 2013. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current on net
basis.

For the above purposes, the Company has determined the operating cycle as twelve months
based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of inputs for
manufacturing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis under the historical cost
convention except:

{a) certain financial instruments and
{b} defined benefit plans
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which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

iv.  Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s functional and presentation currency is Indian Rupee (INR). Al amounts
disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lacs (¥
lacs }, except otherwise indicated.

V. Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial assets and financial liabilities and defined benefit
plans at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either

° inthe principal market for the asset or liability or

* in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their best economic interest.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabiiities.
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is uncbservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

B. Property, plant and equipment

{i} Al property, plant and equipment are shown at cost (net of adjustable taxes) less
accumulated depreciation and, accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an asset
comprises of its purchase price, non refundable / adju urchase taxes and any costs
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

{vii)

directly attributable to bringing the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management, the initial estimate of
any decommissioning obligation, if any, and, for assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use, finance costs. The purchase price is the
aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the
asset. The cost also includes trial run cost and other operating expenses such as freight,
installation charges etc. The projects under construction are carried at costs comprising of
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and attributable
borrowing costs.

Stores and spares which meet the definition of property, plant and equipment and satisfy
the recognition criteria of Ind AS 16 are capitalized as property, plant and equipment,

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset or significant part) is
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

In line with the provisions of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, the Company
depreciates significant components of the main asset {which have different useful lives as
compared to the main asset) based on the individual useful life of those components. Useful
life for such components of property, plant and equipment has been assessed based on the
historical experience and internal technical inputs.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided as per straight line method
based on useful life prescribed under Schedule !l to the Companies Act, 2013. The Company
has assessed the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and equipment and has
adopted the useful lives and residual value as prescribed in Schedule Ii.

Depreciation on stores and spares specific to an item of property, plant and equipment is
based on life of the related property, plant and equipment. In other cases, the stores and
spares are depreciated over their estimated useful life based on the internal technical
inputs.

The residual values and useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end, and changes, if any, are accounted prospectively.

C. intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial

recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any:-

y

Vs

lated amortisation and accumulated
N
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impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles are not capitalised and the related expenditure
is reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Licences and application softwares are classified as Intangible Assets collectively termed as
Computer Softwares in the financial statements.

Estimated lives of Computer Software is 5 to 7 years.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent attributable to

acquisition / construction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, an assessment is made of whether there is any indication of impairment.

If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Company’'s CGUs to which the individual assets are
allocated.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value {ess costs to sell.

Nen-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for//g.\,aiemcgja\?uch assets.
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Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once
classified as held for sale.

inventories

Raw and packing materials, fuels, stores and spares are valued at lower of weighted average cost
and net realisable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of
finished goods are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be
incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials and stores and spares
which do not meet the recognition criteria under property, plant and equipment is determined on a
weighted average basis.

Work-in-progress and finished goods are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable
value. Cost includes direct materials, labour, other direct cost and manufacturing overheads based
on

normal operating capacity.
Traded Goods are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity.

a) Revenue from contracts with customer

Sales are accounted on passing of significant risks, rewards and control of ownership
attached to the goods to customers. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, applicable discounts and
allowances and is inclusive of excise duty wherever applicable.

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when the Company satisfies
performance obligation by transferring promised goods and services (assets) to the
customers. Performance obligations are satisfied when the customer obtains control of the
goods. Any amount of income accrued but not billed to customers in respect of any
contracts is recorded as a contract asset. Such contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables on actual billing to customers. A contract liability is the obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration or an
amount of consideration is due from the customer. Such contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Revenue is measured based on transaction price which is the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, stated net of discounts, returns and taxes. Transaction price is
recognised based on the price specified in the contract. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts / right of return, using the expected value method.

b} Processing income
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Revenue from services is recognized as and when the services are rendered on
proportionate completion method.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases of investment properties is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with
the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
increases and is included in other income in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all
the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss only when the right to receive
payment is established, the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Others

income in respect of export incentives, insurance / other claims, etc. is recagnised when
it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made.

l. Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using exchange rate
prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated at rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date. The difference arising on settlement or translation on
account of fluctuation in the rate of exchange is deait within the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, as finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other gains / (losses).

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

1.  Empioyee benefits

Short-term obligations
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Short-term employee benefits (benefits which are payable within twelve months after the end of the
period in which employees render service) are measured at an undiscounted amount in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which the related services are rendered.

Post-employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes

e defined benefit plan — gratuity, and
» defined contribution plan- provident fund.

Defined benefit plan — Gratuity obligation

Post-employment benefits (benefits which are payable on completion of employment) are
measured on a discounted basis by the Projected Unit Credit Method on the basis of actuarial
valuation carried out at each reporting data.

The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plan is the
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less fair value of
plan assets,

Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

e service cost {including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements);

e net interest expense or income; and

¢ re-measurement.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost.

The net interest expense or income is included in employee benefit expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in Other Comprehensive
Income. They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the
Balance Sheet.

Defined contribution plan

Contributions to Provident Fund are made in accordance with the statute and are recognised as an
employee benefit expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The eligible employees can accumulate unavailed privilege leave and are entitled to encash the
same either while in employment, on termination or on retirement in accordance with the
Company's policy. The present value of such unavailed leave is measured using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each reporting date.The benefits are
discounted using the market yields at the end of the'reporting period that have terms approximating
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to the terms of the related obligation. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Balance Sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur,

K. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception date, whether fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the

use of a specific asset(s) or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if that right is not
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

a) As a lessee

The Company, as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability
for its leasing arrangements, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset.

The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of
an identified asset and the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of
the asset and has right to direct the use of the identified asset.

The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date
plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the
straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful
life of right-of-use asset.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. if that rate cannot
he readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate.

For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

b) As a Lessor

Rental income from operating leases is generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease unless the rentals are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the Company’s expected inflationary cost increases and is included
in revenue in the Statement of Profit or Loss due to its operating nature.

L. Taxation

Income tax expense comprises of current tax expense

or liability during the year. Current and deferred fa

and the net change in the deferred tax asset
: Scognised in the Statement of Profit or
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Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

{a) Current Tax

Current tax expense is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income
for the year.

Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the time of reporting.

(b) Deferred Tax

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising
between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to bhe utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off set if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same faxable entity and the same taxation authority.

M. Segment reporting

The Director of the Company is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM
monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial
statements.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of nature of products / service.

a) Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly attributable / allocable to

segments including inter-segment rever}//‘/
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b} Expenses directly identifiable with / aliocable to segments are considered for determining

the segment results. Expenses which relate to the Company as a whole and not allocable
to

segments are included under unallocable expenditure.

¢} Income which relates to the Company as a whole and not allocable to segments is
included in un-allocable income.

d}  Segment results include margins on inter-segment sales which are reduced in arriving at
the profit before tax of the company.
e) Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective

segments. Un-allocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that
relate

to the Company as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

N. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year after tax
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year is adjusted for events, if any, such as bonus issue, bonus elements in a rights
issue to existing shareholders, shares split and reverse shares split {consolidation of shares}.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year
after tax attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity

shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

0. Provisions and Contingent Assets / Liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of

resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can
be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the outflow
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the case of:

° a present obligation arising from the past events, when it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;

° a present cbligation arising from the past events, when no reliable estimate is
possible;
° a possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of

resources is remote.
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Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

p. Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

. Financial assets

A. Initial recognition and measurement :

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset [other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (FVTPL)} are added to the fair value of the financial assets., Purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

B. Subsequent measurement:

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following
categories:

{i} Debtinstruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following
conditions are met:

a} The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPi) on the principal amount
outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This
category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

(ii) Debt instruments included within the fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) category
are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.




SAVITA POLYMERS LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31% March, 2022

(ili) Eguity instruments
All equity instruments within the scope of ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are classified as held for trading are measured at FVTPL. For all other
equity instruments, the Company decides to measure the same either at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOC!I) or FVTPL. The Company makes such

selection on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in other comprehensive income {OCI). There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss on sale of such
instruments.

iv) Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

C. Derecognition:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s
halance sheet} when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either:

{i) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

{ii} the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

D.  Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on trade receivables and other
advances. The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss
on these financial assets. The application of simplified approach does not require the
Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

it. Financial liabilities

A, initial recognition and measurement:

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as :

(i} financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
(i) loans and borrowings, payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs or
(i} derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

The Company’s financi if{féibllltz include trade and other payables, loans and
?(.“-:-"
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borrowings.

B. Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

(i) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred unti!
the draw down occurs.

Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished and the consideration paid
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as other gains / (losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-
term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect
that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does
not classify the liability as current, if the lender has agreed, after the reporting
period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand
payment as a consequence of the breach.

{ii} Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided 1o the Company
prior to the end of financial period which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured
and are usually paid within twelve months of recognition. Trade and other payables
are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within twelve months
after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

C. De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by anather, from
the same lender, on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the oriéi“jn /\Iiabi!ity and the recognition of a new liability. The

the original
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difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

lHl. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts

and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultanecusly.

First-time adoption-mandatory exceptions. optional exemptions

Overall principle

The Company has prepared the opening Balance Sheet as per Ind AS as of the transition date which is
1% April, 2020, by
(a) recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS;
(b) not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS;
() reclassifying items from previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS; and
(d) applying Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities.

However, this principle is subject to certain exceptions and certain optional exemptions availed by the
Company as detailed below :

1. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and liabilities
prospectively for transactions occurring on or after Ist April, 2020 (date of transition).

2. Classification of debt instruments
The Company has determined the classification of debt instruments in terms of whether they
meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria based on the facts and circumstances
that existed as of the transaction date.

3. Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively;
however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial
instruments were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the
transition date. Further, the company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information
when determining, at the date of transition to Ind AS, whether there have been significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101.

4. Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible
assets
The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets recognised as of 1st April, 2020
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5. Equity investments at FVTPL

The Company has designated investment in equity shares as at FVTPL on the basis of facts
and circumstances that existed at the transition date.

6. Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
The Company has applied Appendix C of Ind AS 17 determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease to determine whether an arrangement existing at the transition date contains a
lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at that date.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liahilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result in cutcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

(a) Operating lease commitments -~ Company as lessor;
(b) Assessment of functional currency;
(c} Evaluation of recoverahility of deferred tax assets

Estimates and assumptions

The foliowing are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year :

a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipement, investment property and intangible assets;
h) Fair value measurements of financial instruments ;

c) Impairment of non-financial assets;

d) Taxes;

e) Defined benefit plans {gratuity benefits);

) Provisions;

g} Revenue recognition

h) Valuation of inventories;

Chuit}

Contingencies




